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PER CURIAM: 
 

Allen Joshua Brown pled guilty to a two-count 

indictment charging him with: (1) possession with intent to 

distribute cocaine base, cocaine and marijuana, in violation of 

21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), (b)(1)(B)-(D) (2006) (Count One); and (2) 

carrying a firearm in furtherance of a drug trafficking crime, 

in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 924(c)(1)(A)(i) (2006) (Count Two).  

He was sentenced to 85 months on Count One and a consecutive 

term of 60 months on Count Two, for a total sentence of 145 

months.  Brown’s counsel has filed a brief pursuant to Anders v. 

California, 386 U.S. 738 (1967), stating that, in her view, 

there are no meritorious issues for appeal.  In her brief, 

however, counsel questions (1) whether Brown’s plea complied 

with Fed. R. Crim. P. 11, and (2) whether the district court 

erred in sentencing Brown.  Brown has filed pro se supplemental 

claims.  Finding no error, we affirm. 

Because Brown did not move in the district court to 

withdraw his guilty plea, we review the propriety of the Fed. R. 

Crim. P. 11 hearing for plain error.  United States v. Martinez, 

277 F.3d 517, 525 (4th Cir. 2002).  Before accepting a guilty 

plea, the district court must ensure that the defendant 

understands the nature of the charges against him, the mandatory 

minimum and maximum sentences, and various other rights, so it 

is clear the defendant is knowingly and voluntarily entering his 
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plea.  The court also must determine whether there is a factual 

basis for the plea. Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(b)(3); United States v. 

DeFusco, 949 F.2d 114, 120 (4th Cir. 1991).  Our review of the 

plea hearing transcript reveals that the district court 

conducted a thorough Rule 11 colloquy, ensuring that Brown's 

plea was knowing and voluntary and that there was an independent 

factual basis for the plea.  

We review a criminal sentence for reasonableness, 

using the abuse of discretion standard.  Gall v. United States, 

552 U.S. 38, ___, 128 S. Ct. 586, 594-97 (2007).  We conclude 

that Brown’s sentence is both procedurally and substantively 

reasonable.  The district court properly calculated Brown’s 

Guidelines range, treated the Guidelines as advisory, and 

considered the applicable 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a) (2006) factors.  

See United States v. Pauley, 511 F.3d 468, 473 (4th Cir. 2007); 

see also Rita v. United States, 551 U.S. 338, ___, 127 S. Ct. 

2456, 2462-69 (2007) (upholding application of rebuttable 

presumption of correctness of within-guideline sentence).  The 

court’s sentence was based on its “individualized assessment” of 

the facts of the case.  United States v. Carter, 564 F.3d 325, 

328 (4th Cir. 2009). 

Having considered Brown’s pro se claims, we find they 

entitle him to no relief.  In accordance with Anders, we have 

also reviewed the record and have found no meritorious issues 
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for appeal.  We therefore affirm Brown’s conviction and 

sentence. 

This court requires that counsel inform Brown, in 

writing, of his right to petition the Supreme Court of the 

United States for further review.  If Brown requests that a 

petition be filed, but counsel believes that such a petition 

would be frivolous, then counsel may move in this court for 

leave to withdraw from representation.  Counsel’s motion must 

state that a copy thereof was served on Brown.  We dispense with 

oral argument because the facts and legal contentions are 

adequately presented in the materials before the court and 

argument would not aid the decisional process. 

AFFIRMED 


